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Montana law requires both the budget director to prepare, 
and the Legislature to adopt, a balanced budget. see §§ 
17-7-121(1), 17-7-123, MCA; Mont. const., art. VIII § 9. 
The only way either of these entities can fulfill this duty 
is to have the power and discretion to examine and amend any 
agency's budget request . Otherwise . the Legislature's 
appropriation authority 1s being exercised by another body. 

THEREFORE, IT IS MY OPINION: 

The General Appropr1ation Act of 1979 (House Bill No . 
483) oroperly appropriates State funds to the community 
colleges . 

Very truly yours, 

MIKE GREELY 
Attorney General 

VOLUME NO. 38 OPINION NO. 55 

CONFLI CT OF INTEREST - County Commissioners, membership on 
boards receiving or disbursing county contract funds; 
CONTRACTS - county contracts, conflict of interest, what 
constitutes interest in; 
COUNTIES - Contracts, county commissioners interested in; 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS - Conflict of interest, board member­
ship in organuations receiving county contract funds, Code 
of Et.nics ; 
MONTANA CODE ANN~\TED- Sect1ons 2-2-102(1), 2- 2-102(4)(!), 
2-2- 125, 2- 2- 131, 7-5-2106(3). 45-7-401. 

HELD: 1. A county commiss1oner who 1s a voting member of a 
board that channels county contract funds to other 
organizations but does not itself derive any 
economic benefit from the contract does not ha.re a 
prohibited interest in the contract under section 
7-5-2106(3), MCA, and does not breach his fidu­
ciary duty under section 2-2-125(2)(b). MCA, by 
acting officially to allocate funds to the board 
!or subsequent disbursement . 
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2. A county commissioner who is a voting member of 
the board of an organization that actually 
receives county contr<oct funds does not have a 
prohibited conflict of i nterest under section 
7-5-2lv6(3), MCA, unless the commissioner receives 
a personal pecuniary or proprietary benefit from 
the contract. Re does, however , b reach his 
fiduciary duty under section 2- 2- 125(2)(b). MCA, 
by acting officially to award county contracts to 
the organization unless he complies with the 
voluntary disclosure requirements of section 
2-2-125(3), MCA. 

J. Fred Bourdeau, Esq. 
Cascade County Attorney 
Cascade County Courthouse 
Great Falls, Montana 59401 

Dear Mr . Bourdeau : 

5 November 1979 

You have requested my opinion on the following question: 

Whether members of the board of county commis­
sioners have a conflict of interest because they 
sit on the boards of organizations that receive or 
d1sburse county contract funds. 

Accord1ng to your inquiry. the commissioners 1n quest1on sit 
as voting members on two types of boards. One type is a 
regional governing board acti ng as a conduit of federal and 
county funds to organizations that provided services for the 
county. The other type of board presented in your inquiry 
is the board of a nonprofit organization that actually 
enters into contracts with the county and receives county 
funds for its services. The commissioners sitting as 
membern on both types of boards are reimbursed for their 
expenses, but do not receive any other form of compensation 
for their activities. 

section 7- 5- 2106 (3), MCA, relating to conflicts of interest 
of membe1s of the board of county commiss ners, provides: 

No member of the board must be directly or indi­
rectly interested: 

••• 
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( 3) in any contract made by the board or any 
person on behalf of the county for the erection of 
public buildings, the opening or improvement of 
roads, the building of brldges, or the purchasing 
of suppl1es or for any other purpose. 

Persons violat1ng th1s statutory proscr1ption may be 
to criminal prosecution for official a 1sconduct 
section 45-7-401, MCA. 

liable 
unde r 

The Montana supreme Court has not as yet addressed the 
question of what specific type of interest is prohibi t.ed by 
section 7-5-2106 , MCA. Other courts, however, have 
generally held that only monetary or proprietary considera­
tion is included in statutes prohibiting public officials 
from having an interest in public contracts. See, ~. 
Appeal of Yenerall, 6 7 A. 2d 565, 566 ( Pa. Super. 1949) ; 
Githens v. Butler county, 165 s.W.2d 650, 652 ( Mo. 1942). 
As stated 1n Yetman v. Naumann, 492 P. 2d 1252, 1255 (Ariz. 
App. 1972): 

We do not believe ... that the legislature intended 
that tbe word "interest" for purposes of disquali­
flcation was to 1nclude a mere abstract 1nterest 
in the general subject or a mere poss1ble contin­
gent intere st. Rather, the term refers to a 
pecun1ary or proprietary i nterest by which a 
person will gain or lose something as contrasted 
to general sympathy, feeling or bias. 

Moreover, the prohibited economic consideration must flow 
directly or indirectly t.o the official hi•sel f, not m.erely 
to a person or organization to which the o fficial may have a 
sentimental or intellectual attachment. See Appeal of 
Yenerall, 67 A.2d at 566; Chadwell v. Commonwealth, 157 
S.W.2d 280, 283 (Ky. 1941). 

The basic reason for limiting the prohibition in conflict of 
interest statutes to interests of a pecuniary or proprietary 
nature is to provide a clear and workable standard for 
application of the statutes, a particularly important con­
sideration in view of the possible i mposition of criminal 
sanctions against officials violating the prohibition. See 
Commonw~a ... th v. Albert, 29 N. E. 2d 817, 820 (Mass. 1949). 
Based on the reason1ng and holdings of the cases dealing 
bpecifically with conflict o f interest statutes, it is my 
opinion that the definition of "interest" in s ection 7-5-
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2106, MCA, must also be limited to a commissioner 's personal 
pecuniary or proprietary benefit or loss from the contract 
with the county. 

When section 7-5-210&(3), MCA, is applied to the facts set 
forth in your inquiry, it is apparent that the co.mmis­
sioners' membership on the boards in question does not 
constitute a conflict under that statute. The regional 
governing boards do not actually receive any contract funds 
from the county, but merely channel funds to other organiza­
tions . 

Neither the boards nor their members derive any economic 
benefit from the county contracts. The other board you 
described does receive funds from contracts with the county. 
Its members, however. do not personally profit from the 
contracts. Tber~ fore, although a commissioner serving as a 
me.mber of that board may be inclined to award county con­
tracts to the board on the basis of personal preference and 
involvement, he does not have the type of pecuniary or 
proprietary interest in the contracts that is prohibited by 
section 7-5-2106(3), MCA. 

In 1977, the Legislature enacted a code of ethics for per­
sons holding public office in Montana. Sectit>n 2-2-125, 
MCA, applies specifically to the conduct of local government 
officers and employees. Subsection ( 2) (b) of that section 
prohibits an officer or employee of local government from 
"perform ( ing 1 an official act directly and substantially 
affecti ng to its economic benefit a business or other under­
taking in which be either has a substantial financial 
interest or is engaged as counsel, consultant, representa­
tive, or agent." For purposes of the code of ethics, a 
"financ~al interest" is defined in part as "a directorsh1p 
or officership in a busi ness." t 2-2-102(4)(f). MCA. A 
"business" is further defined as including "a corporation 
... or any other individua l or organization carrying on a 
business, whether or not operated for profit." § 2-2-
102(a). MCA. 

1 t is clear from the facts you have presented that me.mber­
ship on the regional governing boards does not bar a county 
coaunissioner from performing official acts involving those 
boards. Although the commissioners are officers on those 
boards, their actions in awarding contract monies does not 
benefit the boards economically. The boards simply funnel 
the awarded funds to organizations that provide services to 
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the county. On the other hand, a county commissioner who is 
a votLng member of the board of a private, nonprofit 
corporation that ;;actu;;ally receives money from the county 
must be seen as violating h i.s fiduciary duty under section 
2-2-l25(2){b), MCA, if he acts officully to award county 
contracts to the organizatLon. By his official act, Lhe 
organization of which he is an officer is directly and 
substantially affected to its economic benefit. 

Subsect1on (3) of sect1on 2- 2-125, MCA, however, goes on to 
prov1de that notwithstanding his interest in an organization 
or bus1.ness, a county comm1.ssioner may perform an othen.~ise 
proh1bited off1c1al act if his participation 1s necessary to 
commission action and if he compl1es w1th the voluntary 
disclosure requirements of section 2-2-131, MCA. Thus, a 
comm1ssioner must reveal the nature of the private int.erest 
creat1ng the conflict pr1or to vot1ng to award a county 
contract to an organizat1on of which he l.S a voting board 
member. 

THEREFORE, IT IS MY OPINION : 

1. A county commlSSlOner who is a voting member of a board 
that channels county contract funds to other organiza­
tlons but does not itself derive any economic b"!nefit 
from the contract does not have a pr<"tlibited interest 
in the contract under section 7-5-2106( 3), MCA, and 
does not breoJch his fiduciary duty under section 2-2-
125(2)(b), MCA, by acting officially to allocate funds 
to the board for subsequent disbursement. 

2. A county commlSSloner wro is a voting member of the 
board of an organization that actually receives county 
contract funds does not have a prohibited conflict of 
interest under sect1on 7-5-2106 ( 3), MCA, unless the 
commissioner receives a personal pecuniary or proprie­
tary benefit from the contract . Re does, however, 
breach his fiduciary duty under section 2-2-125(2)(b), 
MCA, by acting officially to award county contracts to 
the organizat1on unless he complies with the voluntary 
disclosure requirements of section 2- 2- 125(3), MCA. 

Very truly yours, 

MIKE GREELY 
Attorney General 




